Schlumberger in Brief

1997

1996

1995

Operating revenue

$10,647,590,000

$ 8,956,150,000

$ 7,621,694,000

Net income

$ 1,295,697,000

$ 851,483,000

$

Basic earnings per share 1

$2.62

$ 1.74

$

1.33

Diluted earnings per share 1

$2.52

$ 1.70

$

1.32

Dividends declared per share 1

$0.75

$ 0.75

$0.7125
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Restntedfor the 2jor-1 stock split 011 ]11 11e 2, 1997.

649,157,000

Letter from the Chairman

he continuing increase in demand for oil and gas set the scene for
another outstanding year for Schlumberger. Net income of $1.3
billion and basic earnings per share of $2.62 were 52% and 51%,
respectively, above 1996levels. Operating revenue grew by 19%, to $10.65
billion. The strength of the Schlumberger share price during the year
resulted in a two-for-one stock split in June.
Oilfield Services had an excellent year. Driven by expanding exploration and production investments, revenue increased 25% and pretax
operating income increased 58%. The robust growth was fairly evenly
spread geographically and across all services.
Measurement & Systems revenue grew 5%, while pretax operating
income was up 20%. However, these group figures mask two contrasting
stories. A 31% increase in revenue for automated test equipment, smart
cards and systems, reflecting a growing demand worldwide, was offset
by an 11% drop in metering revenue, in which currency exchange rates
played a dominant role.
As we enter our fourth year of strong growth, it is instructive to look
at where we are in the business cycles.

I

Oilfield Services

Global energy demand for 1997 increased by nearly 4%, while oil demand
was up 2.7%. Strongest growth continues to come from Asia and Latin
America, which in 1997 accounted for 27% of world oil demand, up from
18% just ten years ago. At the same time, much of today's production
comes from oil fields that are more than 30 years old. To meet future
demand, lower finding costs will have to be sustained in the face of more
challenging targets, while the continued economic exploitation of aging
fields will depend on increasing the ultimate recovery rate of hydrocarbons
in place. These improvements in productivity will require continuing
investments in new technology.
In last year's annual report, when the outlook for our industry was
universally positive, we pointed out that the delicate balance between
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supply and demand would keep the upstream oil industry highly cyclical.
One year later, the slowing of demand growth in Asia has weakened the
price of oil. Our clients are responding by approaching 1998 exploration
and production spending with some caution, but the Asian effect is more
likely to be a pothole than the end of the pavement.
The overall business fundamentals of the oil industry are sound.
Despite Asian instability, oil demand for 1998 is still forecast to grow at a
healthy 2%. We are convinced that Schlumberger is only at the beginning
of a long and favorable business cycle. This optimism is based on three
factors . Firstly, demand for oil and gas is expected to keep rising at a brisk
pace. Secondly, significant service opportunities in new frontiers, such as
Russia, are starting to open up. Lastly, the potential for new technology to
enhance the value of our services to our clients continues to increase.
Measurement & Systems

Automated Test Equipment (ATE) and Smart Cards & Systems provide
key services to two fast-growing sectors and are expected to continue to
develop strongly over the next few years.
The revamping of our metering and services activities into an
information services business will be accelerated by the organizational
changes we are making, but renewed strong growth is not expected
before the turmoil, created by deregulation and privatization in many
important markets, abates.
Schlumberger Solutions
Technology

The oil industry today recovers only about 35% of the oil it finds. To
make the next quantum leap in productivity, whereby ultimate recovery
rates routinely exceed 50%, the process by which oil and gas reservoirs
are managed must change.
Firstly, the behavior of the producing reservoir will be monitored
in real time through the use of permanent sensors of all types. Combining
real-time information with everything that has gone before provides
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customers with reservoir knowledge they need to evaluate the risks
associated with a range of possible strategies. Reservoir management
will become proactive rather than reactive, as problems are detected and
corrected before they become expensive or impossible to repair.
Secondly, information technology will be deployed to make all the
relevant knowledge available to the user when and where it is needed.
Our development work in knowledge management is part of an industrywide effort to improve our ability to capture knowledge, integrate and
preserve it and then make what has been learned quickly and easily
available to anyone who will be involved in the next business decision.
Our aim is to learn faster and learn forever.
Teamwork

As information technology brings people and ideas together, it also
lowers barriers between organizations, enabling more productive teamwork, particularly with customers. These new relationships take the
form of alliances or integrated services, in which Schlumberger becomes
a complete solutions provider. In this role we integrate and manage bestin-class technology from any supplier to provide a complete solution for
the customer. This approach makes it possible for us to provide the oil
companies with the full breadth and wealth of Schlumberger knowledgebased expertise to help them optimize the performance of their reservoirs.
What is true for managing a reservoir is also valid for the effective
management of the distribution of electricity, gas or water, where huge
opportunities exist in this deregulated, competitive market to improve
efficiency through integrated solutions and services. Further, our
future in smart cards and the growth of our service business in ATE
will be determined by our ability to offer the best integrated solutions
incorporating a variety of specialized vendors.
What I have described will transform the way we do business. It
requires that we have the enabling information technology in place
and that we remove all the barriers, real and imagined, associated with
our present structure to allow people to function effectively in this new
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environment. To identify what changes were needed, we initiated in July
1996 a process of self-examination starting with what we called Forum 2005.
In this forum we challenged a group of 36 young, diverse Schlumberger
people to imagine what the world would be like in the year 2005, and
describe the sort of company they wanted Schlumberger to become.
Since May 1997, we have weighed their recommendations and are now
implementing many of the changes they suggested. These include:
Splitting each business group into Solutions and Products organi
The Solutions Group, organized along geographic markets, is our}
;
interface with our customers. The Products Group, formed by utilizing
existing p roduct line expertise, is responsible for technology, service
delivery and support;

I

I

Expanding and innovating our use of information technology;

Promoting flexibility in career planning and development to put more
emphasis on personal needs;

I

Creating image-building programs to position ourselves more clearly
as a global solutions provider.

I

Above all, the Forum 2005 process emphasized the need for continuous
renewal to enable us to respond effectively to changes in an unpredictable
world. The engine of our reinvention is alread y in place: our diversity
of culture, gender, education and experience- a richness you can sample
via the interactive CD-ROM, Who We Are, included with this report. By
engaging these diverse voices in constructive debate, we are able to challenge the status quo at all levels in the organization with fresh ideas.

Euan Baird
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
January 22, 1998
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THIS YEAR, THE ACCOMPANYING INTERACTIVE CD-ROM TAKES YOU ON A TRIP
INSIDE OUR CULTURE, IN THE WORDS AND PICTURES OF OUR PEOPLE.
FUNDAMENTALLY, WE ARE 63,500 PEOPLE OF 100 NATIONALITIES, LIVING AND
WORKING IN 100 COUNTRIES. BUT THAT ONLY SKIMS THE SURFACE.

Diversity
of our culture, gender,
education and experience
gives us the adaptability to
change as quickly as our
markets demand. We do not
fit some kind of mold, but
are free to be ourselves
and think for ourselves,
challenging the status quo
at all levels of the company.

Speed and correctness of
our action also come from
encouraging a productive

aut nomy:
critical decisions are made
by people closest to the
client. Yet, we are not a
company of lone cowboys.
We are independent and
interdependent, because we
know every united team
is more productive than any
individual.

~q~P!~a1d

talent and challenge
to keep growing, we
maintain a culture of high

,,~v'"'~

mobility.
People move o new places,
geographically and in~ellec
tually-from Dubai ,to Dallas,
from engineering to 1persom1e"(;
or from metering to the oil
field. Individuals renewing
themselves reinvigorate us all.

-

THESE ASSETS-DIVERSITY, AUTONOMY,
MOBILITY AND TECHNOLOGY-GIVE
US A RESILIENCE THAT ENABLES US TO
CHANGE WITH THE CHANGING WORLD.
IT IS OUR FOUNDATION FOR GROWTH ,
FOR OURSELVES AND OUR BUSINESS.

At our core, who we are Is

technologyits invention, engineering,
manufacture, application,
Improvement and marketing.
Yet, we are more than the
hardware and the software.
Our technical sphere encloses
a growing constellation of
services that solve client
problems-faster, better, at
lower cost to them and at
higher profit to us.
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Financial Review
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The Company ha s two reportable business industry segments, Oilfield Services and Measurement
& Systems.

(Sta ted i11mi!lions)
MEASU REMENT & SYSTEMS

OILFIELD SERVICES

Operating revenue
Operating income'

1997

1996

% CHANGE

1997

1996

%CHANGE

$7,663
$1,557

$6,129
$ 986

25'/'o
58%

$2,986
$ 149

$ 2,834
$ 124

5%
20%

10pern1"111g mcon1c represents wcome before mco/1/e taxes, cxcl 11d111g mterest expense and mterest and other mcome, and
the 1111USunl ite111s previously OIIIIOU/Iced in the third quarter of J996. Explnnntion of these U/lu sunl ite111s nppcnrs 011
page 30 i11 the Notes to Co11snlidn ted Finnnc inl Stnle/1/c/lls under "UIIu sunlltei/IS."

Oilfield Services

South Louisiana coast as part of the Transition
2000 campa ign. CeoQu est grew 63%, due to
200 °1<, growth in Data Mana ge ment and
Information Technology services and to the
introdu ction of the nex t-generation CeoFra me*
3.0 integrated reservoir charac terization system.

1997 Results
Oilfield Services achi eved impressive growth
in :1997. World w id e oil demand increa sed by a
s trong 2.7°/,,, fueled mainly by Ch in a, up 11 %,
Asia excluding China, up 6'Yo, Latin America,
up 5%, and by a recoverin g Ru ssia, up 5%. Oil
compan ies world w id e increased their exploration and produ ction exp enditures by 18% over
1996 levels to m ee t the in crea se in d emand.
Oilfi eld Services operating in come g rew 58%
over last year, reaching $1.56 billion, with strong
contribu.tion s from a 11 act iviti es. Operating
reve nu e increased 25%, to $7.66 billion.

OUTSIDE NORTH AMERICA

Revenue increased 22% outside North America,
wh ile rig count increased 2%. Operating income
was up 45%. Sedco Forex and Wire line & Testing
were the largest contributors to revenue growth,
up 42'1., and :13%, resp ec ti vely. Sedco Forex
benefited from hi gher dayrates in the North Sea,
Asia and Wes t Africa and increased activity in
South America, Asia and Africa. Land rig activity
increased, including two new rigs in Mexico and
tw o in Algeri a . In Asia, fleet expansion and
hi gher swa mp barge activi ty con tributed to
increased rev enu e . Th e growth of Wireline &
Tes ting, led by the Far and Middle East, increased
significantl y fa ster than the rig co unt, due to
stronger pricing, in creased service e ffi ciencies
and marke t share ga ins. Hi gher prices stemmed
from the swift d eploym ent of high-technology
tools and systems, including PLATFORM EXPRESS*,
CMR* and PL Flagshjp* services. A nadrill grew
an impressive 35%, led by Central Europe and
the Far East. Growth at Anadrill came from
in crea ses in market share and pricin g, and from
overa ll market g rowth. Loggin g-while-drilling

NORTH AMERICA

In North Am erica, reve nue increased 33%, and
operating income jumped 115%. The ri g count
climbed 26%. The hi ghest revenu e growth cam e
from Dowell and Ceco-Prakla, up 27% and 55%,
respecti vely. Dowell grow th w as due mainl y to
cementing, fracturing and sand control services. In the G ulf of Mexico, there was strong
demand for DeepSea EXPRES* d ee p wa te r
cementing sys tem s and high client acceptance
of th e rev olutionary, nondamagin g ClearFRAC*
fracturin g fluid. Ceco-Prakla m arine seismi c
activity soa red in the Gulf of Mex ico, driven by
high non -exclusive proprietary sur vey activity
for the ongoing Deepwater 2000 operations.
Transiti on Zon e activity concentrated on the
12

In July 1997, Oilfield Services received a tenyear integrated management contract in Venezuela to build and operate, on Lake Maracaibo,
three new multipurpose service vessel (MPSV)
drilling barges and three new MPSV lift boa ts.
The MPSV concept u ses small, purpose-built
vessels, each equipped w ith an integrated
packa ge of Schlumberger services for well
intervention, such as wireline logging, CTD*
coiled tubing drilling and tubing replacement.
An MPSV can perform a well intervention
faster, and at a considerably lower cost, than a
full -size drilling unit. All six vessels are scheduled to be in opera tion by the end of 1998.
In August, the Maersk Victory jackup was
acquired and renamed Trident 19. In September,
the Sedco Forex semisubmersibles Drillstar and
Sedco Explorer were sold to a newly formed
venture in w hich Schlumberger has a 25%
interes t. The rigs will be operated by Sedco
Forex und er bareboat charters. The ga in on
sale has been deferred and will be amortized
over a six-year peri od.
In December, Sedco Forex received contracts
coverin g five years to build two Sedco Express*
semisubmersible drilling rigs. The units will be
delivered in th e fourth quarter of 1999. The
Sedco Express rig represents the next genera tion
of d eep wa ter, mod erate-environment drilling
units. Designed to op timize th e entire well
construction process, it is expected to drill and
complete a well approximately_30% faster than
a conventional fourth-generation unit. The unit
will be able to opera te in water depths up to
7500 feet [2.3 km] .

(LWD) services continued to surge, with
the introduction of the new VISION475* MWD
(measurements-while-drilling)/LWD system for
small-diameter wells.
HIGHLIGHTS

The rapid pace of Oilfield Services grow th
resulted largely from delivering customized
solutions to oil companies striving to increase
hydroca rbon producti o n . Th is all ows ou r
cli ents to meet increasing d em and w hile
reducing exploration and production costs to
maintain a competitive price per barrel.
Oilfield Services revenue grew 25%, faster
than the 18% in crease in exploration and production spending by oil companies. The additional growth ca me from increased drilling
acti vity and from grea ter communica tion and
coopera tion with our clients, leading to increased
outsourcing of their noncore activities. Growth
was also rea lized from the application of key
tec hn ologies and our ability to help clients
increase th e recovery of hydrocarbons, as w ith
IRO* Integrated Reservoir Optimiza tion service,
which was introduced in the fourth quarter.
DRILLING ACTIVITY INCREASES

Throughout 1997, drilling acti vity and pricing
continued to increase. The Sedco Forex average offshore rig utilization of 94% was in line
with the previous yea r. Jackup utiliza tion
remained at 100%, and semisubmersible utiliza tio n was 97%. The Sedco Forex average
onshore rig utili za tion for the year increased
fro m 57% to 90%. At year end, the Sed co Forex
fl eet consisted of 84 units: 52 offshore and 32
onshore, up from 83 units at the end of 1996.
The fl ee t includ es 13 offshore units under
bareboa t charter or m ana gem ent co ntrac t.
Sedco Forex has eight deepwater drilling units
capable of drilling in water depths of more
than 3000 feet [approximately 1 km ].

RELATIONSHIPS CREATE GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

Links between Schlumberger and oil and gas
compa nies are continuing to develop through
our !PM (Integrated Projec t Management)
activity. This business has expanded from 100
employees in 1995 to nearly 600 today, and has
13

During the fourth quarter, a Nessie 4C MultiWave
Array crew mobilized for a 200-km' [78-sq mile]
multicomponent survey, approximately ten
times the size of any previous seabed survey.
Research and engineering in fluid chemistry
have resulted in the development of Dowell
ClearFRAC fracturing fluid. Fracturing fluids are
used to transport sand or other proppants into
oil and gas reservoirs to increase hydrocarbon
production. Normally these fluids have the disadvantage of leaving some solid residue, which
inhibits their full effectiveness. The ClearFRAC
formulation is a polymer-free fluid that leaves
no residue and results in higher production.
Construction, operating and intervention
costs in oil fields were reduced in 1997 through
the proliferation and improved placement of
highly deviated and horizontal wells, and mu ltilaterals drilled from a common trunk. New
VISION475 technology is a slim 4.75-inch
MWD/LWD service that reduces total well
costs while maximizing hydrocarbon production. This is possible by allowing a reduced
wellbore diameter without giving up the realtime formation evaluation measurements
needed for optimum geosteering and ana lysis.
The V!SION475 application possesses unique
logging sensors that a llow operators to steer to
the most productive zones in a formation.
Worldwide deployment of this technology has
significantly improved field development
returns on investment for clients.
The CMR Combinable Magnetic Resonance
service, performed by Wireline & Testing, provides va luable insight to clients for finding oil
in complex reservoirs, discovering bypassed or
untapped reserves and distinguishing oil from
gas. For example, in the North Sea this year,
CMR technology was used to log an exploration
well in which the target sands held water.
However, the CMR log analysis indicated

contributed to earnings on its own and
through additional Oilfield Services activities.
An example of a recent alliance is the Dacion
field project with LASMO plc in Venezuela. ln
an assessment phase completed in June 1997, a
joint integrated team was formed by LASMO,
GeoQuest and !PM to identify important technical issues and recommend further actions.
The objectives of the development phase are to
increase production and optimize recovery of
reserves. Upon approval of the plan, IPM will
perform its implementation.
KEY TECHNOLOGIES IMPROVE ECONOMICS

In 1997, our Oilfield Services research and
engineering investment of $320 million produced technologies for operating in harsher
environments and reducing finding and development costs. Oilfield Services capital expenditure exceeded $1.3 billion and allowed rapid
deployment of these technologies.
For geophysical app lications, the Nessie*
4C MultiWave Array* multicomponent seabed
acquisition system was introduced by GecoPrakla at the end of 1996. Seismic waves are of
two types- compressional and shear- each
providing different information about the subsurface geology. An analysis of the response
from the two wave types may determine the
type of fluids conta ined in the formation.
Traditional 30 marine seismic data acquired
with surface streamers reflect information
exclu sively from compressional waves, the
only ones that can travel through water. This
provides a partial image of a reservoir. The
Nessie 4C MultiWave Array system, which
records both compressional and shear waves at
the seabed, has helped our clients learn more
about their reservoirs. The system significantly
improves the client's ability to map the location
and quantities of oil and gas, better enabling
them to optimally develop and recover reserves.
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some unanticipated oil higher up in the well
that conventional log analysis would have
missed. Subsequent testing confirmed the
presence of the oil. The oil company is now
evaluating options, reviewing the seismic data
and contemplating a sidetrack. Following the
CMR success, the oil company decided to run
the application in Alaska, Angola and Norway.
Overall, worldwide activity for CMR technology doubled since last year.
Today, massive amounts of data are acquired
in our Oilfield Services activities. GeoQuest
develops software products to interpret and
visualize these data and to perform modeling
and simulation. The GeoFrame integrated reservoir characterization system is the centerpiece
of GeoQuest software development efforts. In
1997, GeoQuest released the next-generation
GeoFrame 3.0 application. This software combines the power of IESX* and Charisma* seismic
interpretation systems with other applications.
It delivers unparalleled power to define and manage reservoirs, and its integrated capabilities
let each member of a multidisciplinary team
simultaneously view, edit and interpret data and
results through all phases of a project. Users
indicate a dramatic increase in productivity, a
streamlining of their work flow and the ability
to create a more accurate reservoir model.

prevent future production problems. The IRO
concept offers numerous benefits because it
is proactive and closely links development
decisions with a thorough understanding of
reservoir architecture, flow dynamics and
response to various well interventions. In the
future, as new data acquisition, communications and software tools are developed, it will
be possible to achieve near real-time, interactive reservoir management.
IMPROVING INTERNAL EFFICIENCY

In addition to client-focused advancements,
Schlumberger continues to improve its internal
efficiency and productivity. The Company has
implemented, in full, in all its districts in
North America, and is implementing worldwide, the new BASIS* (Business Application
Solutions In Schlumberger) business management tool, using the SAP R/3+ integrated software application, which replaces dozens of
existing discrete applications with a single,
seamless solution.
Schlumberger is also overhauling all training programs for engineers. These programs
emphasize learning, using information technology (IT), with the objectives of improving
training quality while decreasing training
time. On-line and CD-ROM training modules
have been developed, and full use of IT is
achieved by giving every new hire a laptop
computer with connectivity to the internal
Schlumberger communications network and
to the Internet. The immediate result has been
a reduction of the training period by up to
25%. The training programs also encourage
common steps with the objectives of creating
and disseminating a broader Oilfield Services
culture, optimizing the costs of training
and positioning our engineers to thrive in
the increasingly integrated oilfield services
environment.

MAXIMIZING THE
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF RESERVOIRS

In the fall of 1997, Schlurnberger introduced the
IRO Integrated Reservoir Optimization service.
This service combines new-generation reservoir
characterization and flow simulation tools with
a team approach to evaluate various field development and production strategies. Working
closely with the client, an experienced multidisciplinary team selects and implements the
optimal development plan. Reservoir monitoring and control processes are included to
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1996 Results

the various phases of the explora ti on and production process, at the end of 1996, !PM was
supervising, on beh alf of clients, the operations of 34 d rilling rigs.

NORTH AMERICA

Revenue in North Am erica grew 21 %, while
operating income rose 111 %, compared w ith
1995. The rig count increased 10%. All businesses contributed to this growth, most notably
GeoQuest, with a revenue increase of 52%, and
Dowell and Wireline & Testing, with increases
of 17% and 13%, respectively.
As a general trend, prices improved on
higher activity and the introduction of new technologies. Dowell took the lead in the technically
challenging high-pressure, high-tempera ture
p um ping and cementing markets in the Gulf
of Mexico. This leadership was affirmed by
the success of the DeepSea EXPRES cementing
head, an innovative completion technology
w hich facilitates casing cem enting operations
in d eep wa ter. Geco-Prakl a significa ntl y
expanded its non-exclu sive seismic survey
activities in the Gulf of Mexico. Sedco Forex
returned to North America w ith two rigs under
m anagement contract. Anadrill successfully
introduced worldwide the new RAPID* Reentry
and Production Imp rovement Drilling service,
a crossdisciplinary technology w hich improves
production economics through reentry, sidetracking and ex tending existing wellbores.

HIGHLIGHTS

In response to favorable m arket conditions,
Schlumberger boosted capital expenditures for
Oilfield Services by 27% in 1996.
As CTD technology provides an effec tive
alterna tive to con ventional drilling in reentry
drilling m arkets, Dowell and Sedco Forex joined
forces and expertise in CTD technology, and
Anadrill developed the new VIPER* slimhole
directional bottomhole assembl y fo r coiled
tubing service. In the fourth quarter, Dowell
and Baker Oil Tools in troduced CoilWORKS*
technology, drawing on the strategic alliance
between Schlumberger and Baker Hughes. The
CoilWORKS service is a seamless answer to
workover applications by w hich the two companies have combined their bes t-in-class technologies to address the growing demand for
economic, total system workover solutions for
mature fields.
The GeoSteering* tool, which enables the
d riller to ma ke course corrections while drilling,
m ad e substantial gains in markets in the Fa r
East. The SIMPLER* 101 drilling rig, a new
modul ar land rig, was introduced in Gabon,
where it began a five-year integrated services
contract in April. Several Dowell drilling fluids
products, including QUADRILL *, VISPLEX* and
ULTIDRILL*fluid s, gained increased acceptance
in 1996, in recognition of their contributions
to drilling efficiency and well productivity.
PLATFORM EXPRESS and CMR services improve
the efficiency of wireline logging and deliver
critical an swers to difficult formation evaluation problems. Ac tivities of b oth services
increased eightfold over 1995 levels. Marine
seismic effi ciency continued to improve due

OUTSIDE NORTH AMERICA

Outside North America, revenue increased
28% and operating income climbed 51%, versus 1995. Rig count rose 5%. All regions grew,
w ith significant upswings in the North Sea,
La tin Am erica and West Africa . The larges t
contrib uto rs were Wireline & Tes ting and
Sed co Forex, up 17% and 42%, resp ectively.
Offsh ore dayrates for Sed co Forex increased
significantly. The trend toward integra ted services continued, resulting in the exp ansion of
!PM operations. Form ed in 1995 in resp on se to
increased dem and for integrated solutions in
16

America. The successful implementation of
new stimulation techniques, such as the
PropNET* fluid system for hydrau lic fracturing, improved hydrocarbon recovery for clients
at a time when eroding gas prices were impeding
pressure pumping activity. Our market and
technological leadership in MWD and LWD
services continued. The ARCS* Array Resistivity
Compensated tool was introduced and received
wide client acceptance as it provides accurate
LWD resistivity measurements in small-diameter
wellbores. Also, demand for geological, petrophysical and seismic interpretation software
products drove the increase in sales at Software
Products. During the year, GeoQuest acquired
the Petroleum Division of Intera Information
Technologies Corporation, renamed Reservoir
Technologies. Seismic activities were adversely
impacted by weather in the Gulf of Mexico and
lower profitability on sales of non-exclusive
seismic data.

to aggressive deployment of the TRILOGY*
onboard data management system and
Monowing* multistreamer towing technology.
The introduction of the fourth-generation
Nessie marine streamer, with only a 54-mm
[2.1-inch] outside diameter, further extended
the towing capacity and efficiency of GecoPrakla vessels. With the ECLIPSE* reservoir
simulation software, the GeoFrame integra ted
reservoir characterization system and the
Finder* line of data management products,
GeoQuest now offers the oil industry the most
comprehensive range of integrated software
system s, data management solutions and processing and interpretation services. Tracking
the flow of different fluids in horizontal and
high-angle wells became possible with the
newly introduced production logging technology, PL Flagship advanced well flow diagnosis
service. Building on a solid track record in well
testing, the Wireline & Testing Early Production
System (EPS) group has expanded significantly.
Early production sys tems saw activity in the
North Sea and Africa.
Average offshore rig utilization grew to
94% from 89%, aided by jackup utilization of
100% and semisubmersible utilization of 96%.
At year end, the Sedco Forex fleet consisted of
83 rigs, up from 76 at the end of 1995.

OUTSIDE NORTH AMERICA

A 16% rise in revenue and 53% grow th in
operating income outside Nor th America,
along with a 3% increase in rig count, were due
mostly to activity in Latin America, Africa and
the North Sea. Demand increased for Modular
Early Production Facilities and the Universal
Pressure Platform. Drilling Fluids services
grew substantially in Latin America and the
UK sector of the North Sea. Revenue grew due
to increased activity and improved drilling rig
dayrates in the North Sea and West Africa, offset
slightly by a temporary softening in the swamp
barge and tender markets and reduced demand
for semisubmersibles in Southeast Asia. Several
important rig contracts were signed, notably
for integrated services. Momentum built in the
first three quarters of 1995 in seismic operations was offset in the fourth quarter by poor
weather in the North Sea and operational

1995 Results
NORTH AMERICA

North American revenue rose 3% in 1995, and
operating income declined 43%, compared with
1994, while the rig count declined 8%.
New technol ogy was a chief driver of
growth. PLATFORM EXPRESS service, the latestgeneration wireline logging teclmology, was
introduced in the third quarter, and set new
standards for efficiency, reliability and answers
in the industry. By year end, there were 17
PLATFORM EXPRESS units deployed in North
17

diffi culti es in Tra nsition Zone op e ra tions .
De ploy m e nt of Mon ow ing multi s trea m er
tow ing techn ology and th e TRfLOG Y d a ta
management system con tinu ed. New ID EAL*
Integra ted Drilling Eva lu a tion and Loggin g
sys tem s were d eployed w orldw ide, while the
Power Pulse* MWD telem etry tool continued to
set new standards for reliability and durability.

was signed with Illinois Powe r to s upply a
two-way radio-frequency customer communica tion system. The contract, w hich includes
o peration and m a intenance o ver a 15-year
period, represents the industry's largest a utom atic me ter reading (AMR) project to d ate.
Elec tronic Transactions revenue and orders
grew 26% and 30%, respectively, from 1996.
Smart card revenu e increased 107% (40 %,
excluding th e Solaic a ctivity acquired in
December 1996). This solid growth was spurred
by a continued increase in d emand for both
microprocessor and m em ory cards, which are
used in cellular mobile communications, banking and payphone applica tions. To s upport the
continued volume growth, additional smart ca rd
production opera tions were established in H on g
Kon g and Mex ico. Sales of te lecom equipment
improved 7% compared w ith 1996, as a result
of the expansion of opera tions in China and
Mexico to mee t growing cus tom er d emand.
Co mp are d w ith 1996, ATE revenu e and
ord ers increased 37% and 54%, resp ecti ve ly.
Semiconductor tes ting sys tem s grew 59%,
re fl ecting a favorabl e trend towa rd 200-MHz
and 400-MH z logic tes ters. Market share for
ATE increased in all semicondu ctor tes t market
segments. Significant improvem ents in d eli veries of burn-in board load ers and unloaders
and assembly sys tem s fueled a 55% increase
fo r a uto mate d handling sys tem s. The rise
in ord e rs was prima rily due to exceptional
growth in d em and for the fTS9000* family of
p roducts a t Tes t Sys tems, accompani ed b y an
in crease a t Diagn os tic Sys tem s, on s tron ger
cu s to mer acce ptance o f both th e 1052000*
and P2X* sem icon d uctor analysis system s. In
October 1997, Interactive Vid eo Sys tems, Inc.
(IVS), a metrology solutions prov ider for th e
fro nt-end semiconductor fabrication equipment
ma rket, was acquired .

Measurement & Systems
1997 Results
Revenue for Measurement & Sys tem s grew 5%
compared with 1996, dri ven primarily by significant grow th at Automated Test Equipment (ATE),
d emand for ca rd s a t Elec troni c Tran sac tion s
and previously announced acquisitions. These
gains were offse t b y an unstable b usiness en vironment that affec ted electricity and gas
me tering activiti es in Europe throughout the
year, and b y an unfavorable fluctu a tion in
cu rrency exchange ra tes.
Opera ting inco m e fo r Meas urem ent &
System s rose 20'X ,, as fur ther turmoil associated
w ith d e reg ula tion a nd pri va tiza tion in the
Eu ropea n metering sector nega tive ly im pacted
so lid res ults from the other businesses.
Metering revenue decreased 11 o;:, co mpared
with 1996, du e to nega tive currency effects in
Europe a nd Asia. The European business en vironment continued to be affected b y the privatiza tion and d e regulation of utiliti es as we ll as
by th e implementatio n of new reg ula tions on
procurem ent. This led to increased competition
and severe price erosion. The revenue d ecline
was substantial in Italy and in th e UK. In contrast, South Ame rica experienced a signifi cant
grow th in revenu e with strong d em and for
wa ter meters and the new SL1 6*elec tricity meter.
North America benefited from strong wa ter
and gas me ter sales. Sys tems & Services revenu e decli ned 3%. In December, an agreement
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due to acquisitions, favorable currency effects
and h ealthy ac tivity in Eu rope an d Asia.
Operating incom e increased 25%.
For the Metering business, revenue improved
14% and orders rose 17%, due to the acquisition of AEG's worldwide electricity m etering
operations and robust demand across Europe.
Sys tem s & Services revenue and orders
grew 25%, m ainly due to the rise in service
activities in the UK.
Compared with 1994, revenu e and orders
for Electronic Transac tions soa red 31% and
36%, respectively. These gains included contributions from the acquisitions of Malco Plas tics
and Messerschmidt Appara te in late 1994 and
the acquisition of Dan yl in 1995. Card activity
continued to grow due to cellular subscriber
demand in Europe and shipments to China.
Automated Tes t Equipment revenue and
orders improved 32%, driven by strong demand
for the ITS9000 family of semiconductor tes t
sys tem s in North America, Europe and Asia.

1996 Results
Revenue and ord ers for M eas urem ent &
Systems grew 3% and 2%, respectively, compared with 1995. A decline in Metering revenue only parti ally offset gains at Electronic
Transac tions and System s & Services. The rise
in orders was led by Electronic Tran sactions,
Water Management and Systems & Services.
Operating income declined 18%, mainly due to
poor business condition s for m etering in
Europ e and a decrease in dem and for semiconductor test equipment.
Compared with 1995, revenue and orders
for Me tering fell 1% and 3%, resp ec tively.
Dem and for electricity m eters in Europe continued to suffer, particularly in the UK and
German y. Sales of gas m eters improved , led
by a strong dem and in the CIS.
Systems & Services revenue rose 12%, as
deregulation crea ted business opportunities in
Europe. Orders were up 10% from 1995 d riven
by increased activity in France and the UK.
Including the acquisitions of Printer and
Germann, Electronic Transactions revenue and
orders grew 18% and 17%, respectively. Smart
cards grew 42%, sp urred by dem and for memory and microp rocessor cards for payphones
and cellular phones in China, Italy and the US.
Electronic Transactions was the primary supplier of sm art card s for the 1996 Olympic Gam es
in Atlanta. Solaic, a French sm art card manu facturer, was acquired on December 31, 1996.
Autom ated Tes t Equipment revenue was
essentially flat compared with the prio r yea r.
A substantia l increase in volume for IDSl OOOO*
diagn os tic sys tem s b alanced a d ecrease in
demand for other products. Orders increased 3%.

Net Income
(Stated in millio11s except per share amounts)
EARNINGS PER SHARE\

NET INCOME

BASIC

DILUTED

1997

$1,296

$2.62

1996

$ 851
$ 649

$1.74

$ 1.70

$ 1.33

$ 1.32

1995
1

$2.52

Restated for the 2-for-1 stock split on june 2, 1997.

In 1997, op er a tin g incom e o f the Oilfield
Services segm ent increased $571 m illion , or
58%, to $1.56 billion . The growth reflected the
continued higher dem an d for oil and gas and
the strong increase in explora tion and production sp end ing by oil comp anies. These un derlying fac tors, combined w ith new technology,
greater efficiencies and higher dayrates, resulted
in stronger pricing and higher market share.

1995 Results
In 1995, revenue and orders grew 18% and
21%, respectively. This growth was primarily
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The Asian and North American markets were
significant growth areas. Measurem ent &
Sys tems op erating incom e increased $25 m illion, or 20%, to $149 m illion despite adverse
exchange rate effects. Automated Test Equipment,
Electronic Transactions and activity in Asia all
contributed to this increase. Metering activities
in Europe declined due to increased competition and severe price erosion.
In 1996, op erating incom e of the Oilfield
Services segm ent increased $359 million, or
57%, to $986 million. Growth w as due to
underlying econ omic factors, strong dem and
and the p rice increases of oil and gas. Other
factors included the success of new and existing services such as PLATFORM EXPRESS and
LWD technologies. In addition , th e strong
contribution of Geco-Prakla, w hich returned
to profit ability, h ad a significant impac t.
Meas urem ent & System s operating incom e
declined by 18%, to $124 million, because of
steep declines at Automated Test Equipment
and Electricity & Gas Me tering. A temporary
wea kness in the semiconductor industry was
due to soft m arket conditions and reduced
capital spending by o ur cu stomers leading to
p ostponements of product deliveries. Turbulence in the electricity metering m arkets was
due to strong pricing pressures and lower volumes in the Europ ean markets.
In 1995, operating income of the Oilfield
Services segment increased $132 million, or 27%,
to $627 million. H igher activity outside North
America and an improved Geco-Prakla were
partially offse t by lower results in the US. The
only setback was the deterioration in the results
of Geco-Prakla, where op era tional problems
in the last quarter offset significant improvem ents during the first nine months. Severe
wea ther in th e Gulf of Mexico and Wes t of
Sh e tland in the N orth Sea regio n , lower

profitability on non-exclusive proprietary survey sales and losses resulting from technical
and operational problems in Transition Zone
ac ti vities were the m ajor factors. Measurement
& Systems operating income increased by 25%,
to $151 million, becau se of strong grow th at
Electronic Transactions and Autom ated Tes t
Equipment, and acquisitions.
Currency Risks
Refer to p age 28, "Tran sla tion of N on-US
Curren cies," in the N o tes to Con solida ted
Finan cial Statem ents for a d escription of the
Compan y's policy on currency hedging. There
are n o m aterial unhed ged asse ts, liabilities
or commitments which are denominated in
other than a business' functional currency
While changes in exchange rates d o affect
revenue, esp ecially in the Measurement &
System s segm ent, they also a ffe ct cos ts.
Generally speaking, the Company is currency
neutral. For exa mple, a 5% change in average
exchange rates of OECD currencies would have
h ad no m aterial effect on con solidated revenue
and net incom e.
In general, w hen the US dollar weakens
against other currencies, consolidated revenue
increases w ith usu all y no m aterial effec t on net
income. This is principally because the fallthrough incremental margin in Measurement
& System s offsets the higher Oilfield Services
n on-US dollar denominated exp en ses.
The Company's businesses operate principally in US dollars, most European currencies
and m ost South Am erican currencies.
Income Tax Expense
In 1996, with increasing profitability and a
strong outlook in the US, the Company
recognized 50% of the US income tax benefit
related to its US subsidiary's tax loss carryforward and all temporary differences. This
20

(Stated in millions)

resulted in a credit of $360 million. Refer to
page 34 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements under "Income Tax Expense" for
more information.
In 1997, the Company recognized the
remaining 50%, which resulted in no significant reduction of income tax expense.

-

Net income
Depreciation &
amortization
Other
Increase in working
capital requ irements
Fixed asset add itions
Dividends paid
Other

Research & Engineering
Expenditures were as follows:
(Stated in millions)

1996 1995
- -$294 $279
158
148
1
1
- -- - -$486 $453 $428
-

Oilfield Services
Measurement & Systems
Other

1997
-$320
166

---

1997

1996
$851

-- -

$1,296
973
(5)
2,264

1995
$ 649

820
885
(1) ~
1,735 1,455

(496)
(273) (238)
(1,496) (1,158) (939)
(371)
(367) (327)
201
132
- - __j§)
102
(55)
69

Proceeds from
employee stock
plans
146
180
74
Purchase of shares
for Treasu ry
(41)
(17)
Businesses acq uired
(139) (217)
Net proceeds on sale
of drilling rigs'
174
(57)
(66)
23
Other
Net increase (decrease)
in liquidity
$ 348 $ 44 $(216)
Liquidity- end of period $ 580 $ 232 $ 188

= = == = = = == = = = ===

Interest Expense
Interest expense increased $15 million in 1997,
following a $10-million decrease in 1996. The
increase in 1997 was due to significantly higher
debt balances, only partially offset by lower
average borrowing rates.
The decrease in 1996 was due to lower
average rates which more than offset higher
average debt outstanding.

1 In September, the Sedco Forex semisubmersibles Drills tar
and Sedco Explorer were sold to a newly formed venture
in which Schlumberger has a 25% interest. The rigs will be
operated by Sedco Forex under bareboat charters. The gain
on sale has been deferred and will be amortized over a
six-year period. This transaction had no significant effect
on 1997 results and will have no significan t impact on
future results of operations.

Liquidity
A key measure of financial position is liquidity,
defined as cash plus short-term and long-term
investments, less debt. The following table
summarizes the Company's change in consolidated liquidity for each of the past three years:

In 1997, 1996 and 1995, the significant
increase in working capital requirements followed the higher business activity. The major
increases were in the working capital components of receivables and inventory. Higher
fixed asset additions reflected the significant
increase in Oilfield Services activities.
The current consolida ted liquidity level,
combined with liquidity expected from
operations, should satisfy future business
requirements.
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Common Stock, Market Prices and
Dividends Declared per Share

rem edia tion activities related to the past use or
disposal of haza rd ous materials. Substantially
all such costs rela te to divested operations and
to facilities or locations that are no longer in
operation. Due to a number of uncertainties,
including uncertainty of timing, the scope of
rem ediation, future technology, regulatory
changes and other factors, it is possible that the
ultimate remediation costs m ay exceed the
amounts estimated. However, in the opinion of
m anagement, such additional costs are not
expected to be material relative to consolidated
liquidity, financial position or future results
of operations. Consistent with the Company's
commitment to protection of the environment,
safety and employee health, additional costs,
including capital expenditures, are incurred
rela ted to current operations.

Quarterly hi g h a nd low prices for th e
Company's Common Stock as reported by the
New York Stock Exchange (composite transactions), together with dividends declared per
share in each quarter of 1997 and 1996, were:
PRICE RANGE

---

---

LOW

DIVIDENDS
DECLARED

$ 58 Y,,
63 1:;
84%

$49
51 Ys
62 %
72 %

$ 0.1875
0.1875
0.1875
0.1875

$ 32 '/':,
40 /':,
39 '/':,
42 Ys

$ 0.1875
0.1875
0.1875
0.1875

HIGH

1997 1
QUARTER S

First
Second
Third
Fourth
1996

94 ~6

1

QUARTERS

First
Second
Th ird
Fourth
1Restated

$ 40 Y,,
45 '/':,
44 ;1,,
54 %

Outcome of Litigation
In th e Contingencies no te of the No tes to
Consolid ated Fin ancial Statements for the
years 1994 to 1996, reference was made to a case
involving the validity of a 1988 settl ement and
release in connection wi th an inciden tal business venture. On December 11, 1997, the Texas
Supreme Court rendered a final judgment in
favor of Schlumberger which upheld the original
1993 lower court's decision which exonerated
the Company from any liability in this case. As
ind ica ted in prior years, no provision had been
made in the Consolidated Financial Statements
and consequently this judgment had no effect
on the consolidated results of opera tions.
In the 1995 and 1996 Contingencies note of the
No tes to Consolida ted Financial Statements,
reference was made to a case involving a contract dispute in Johnson County, Texas. A settlement was reached with the plaintiff in the
fourth qu arter of 1997 which had no significant
effect on the consolidated results of operations.

for the 2-for-1 stock split on june 2, 1997.

The number of hold ers of record of the
Common Stock of the Company at December
31, 1997, was approximately 22,000. Th ere are
no legal restrictions on the payment of dividends or ownership or voting of such shares,
except as to shares h eld in the Company's
Treasury. US stockholders are not subject to
any Netherlands Antilles withholding or other
Netherlands Antilles taxes attributable to ownership of such shares.

Environmental Matters
The Company and its subsidiaries comply with
government laws and regulations and responsible managem ent practices for the protection
of the environment. The Consolidated Balance
Sheet includes accruals for the estimated future
costs associa ted w ith certa in environmenta l
22

New Accounting Standard

resulting in an accelerated implementation of
compli ant programs and in the initial establishment of contracts with third-party vendors
for the repair, testing and implem entation of
nearly 19,500 programs.
Willie all business sectors will be required to
maintain dead lines and priorities on the business applications mentioned above, the main
focus in 1998 will be on products and services.
The assessment of existing products and services in each business segm ent is incomplete
and hence the Company cannot as ye t make a
fina l conclusion as to whether all products and
services will be Year 2000 compliant. However,
the Company does believe, based on the assessm ents comp leted to date, that mission-critical
Year 2000 problems can be corrected. The introduction of Year 2000 Project Teams tlu·oughout
the Company ha s been accelerated. Deadlines
and objectives for the completion of assessment
and repair of noncompliant mission-critical
products and services by the end of 1998 have
been esta blished. The m ain focus in 1999 will
be on testing and implementation of repaired
programs, products and services.
Efforts will be made to protect the Company
from being adversely impacted in the Year 2000
by entities not affiliated with the Company
(suppliers, financial institutions, etc.). The
Company will promote knowledge sharing with
customers, suppliers and alliance parmers to
attempt the most efficient Year 2000 solu tions.
The Company exp ects that the total cost of
addressing this issue over the next two years will
be $40 million- $60 million, but the assessments
are not yet complete. This cos t estimate does
not include the normal upgrading of business
and financial systems which would be Year
2000 compliant. Costs incurred in cormection
with Year 2000 compliance will be trea ted as
period costs and expensed as incurred.

During 1996, The Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) 128, "Earnings
per Share." Since the standard is effective with
the fourth quarter of 1997, the Company has
adopted this standard. All prior periods have
been rest a ted.

Year 2000 Issue
The "Year 2000 Issue" is the inability of computers and computing technology to recognize
correctly the Year 2000 date change. The problem
results from a long-standing practice by programmers to save memory space by denoting
Years using just two digits instead of four digits.
Thus, systems that are not Year 2000 compliant
may be unable to read dates correctly after the
Year 1999 and can return incorrect or Lmpredictabl e results. This could have a significant
effect on the Company's business/ financial
systems as well as products and services, if
not corrected.
Schlumberger recognizes that the "Year
2000 Iss ue" creates a significant uncertainty to
its business and that Year 2000 compliance to
safeguard operations and minimize business
disruption is a key business obligation.
A "Millennium Compliance Program" is
w1der way throughout the Company to ensure
that all mission-critical business systems,
products and services both in the US and internationally in all business segments are Year 2000
compliant. The Company is also actively working with suppliers, contractors and a lliance
parh1ers to promote Year 2000 compliance.
In 1994, the Company decided to upgrade
its main business systems with compliant program s such as SAP R/3 and QAD MFG/PROf.
In 1997, a complete inventory of all business
systems took place throughout the Company
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Consolidated Statement of Income
(Stated i11 tlzousauds except per sltare amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

1997

1996

1995

$10,647,590
106,823

$8,956,150
69,515

$7,621,694
91,536

10,754,413

9,025,665

7,713,230

7,836,952
486,205
307,036
369,030
86,843

6,835,444
452,608
301,304
355,392
72,020
333,091
(175,677)

5,804,157
427,848
283,790
345,441
81,620

9,458,716

8,174,182

7,064,073

$ 1,295,697

$ 851,483

$ 649,157

$2.62

$1.74

$1.33

$2.52

$1.70

$1.32

495,215

490,041

484,748

514,345

500,498

487,864

Revenue

Operating
Interest and other income

Expenses

Cost of goods sold and services
Research & engineering
Marketing
General
Interest
Unusual items

372,650

Taxes on income

Net Income

Basic earnings per share1

Diluted earnings per share 1 ·2
Average shares outstanding

1

Average shares outstanding assum ing

dilution 1 ·2

121,217

' Restated for the 2jor-1 stock split on June 2,1997.
2The calculation of dilu ted earnings per share assumes that all stock options and warrants are exercised at the beginning
of the period and the proceeds used to purchase shares at the average market price for the period.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Schlumberger Limited (Schlumberger N. V, Incorporated in the Netherlands Antilles) and Subsidiary Companies
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
(S tated in tlwusm1ds)

December 31,

1997

1996

$ 1,761,077

$ 1,358,948

2,819,898
1,094,070
175,927
220,248

2,260,091
938,974
222,456
262,148

6,071,220
742,751
3,768,639

5,042,617
323,717
3,358,581

1,167,624
202,774
143,723

1,225,335
203,983
170,818

$12,096,731

$10,325,051

$ 2,297,370
384,167
750,303
93,821
104,237

$ 2,200,161
367,562
743,018
92,842
70,827

3,629,898
1,069,056
396,559
306,294

3,474,410
637,203
383,129
203,929

5,401,807

4,698,671

931,096
8,061,731
(2,249,765)
(48,138)

818,803
7,137,744
(2,315,946)
(14,221)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and short-term investments
Receivables less allowance for doubtful accounts
(1997 $60,535; 1996 $58,981)

Inve ntori es
Deferred taxes on income
Other current assets
Long-Term Investments, held to maturity
Fixed Assets less accumulated depreciation
Excess of In vestment Over Net Assets
of Companies Purchased less amortization
Deferred Taxes on Income
Other Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued li abilities
Estimated liability for taxes on income
Bank loans
Dividend payable
Long-term debt due within one year
Long-Term Debt
Postretirement Benefits
Other Liabilities

Stockholders' Equity

Common stock
Income retained for use in the business
Treasury stock at cost
Translation adjustment

6,694,924

5,626,380

$12,096,731

$10,325,051

See Notes to Consolida ted Financial Sta tements
Schlumberger Limited (Schlumberger N .V., incorporated in the Netherlands Antilles) and S ubsidiary Co mpanies
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Sta l ed in thousands)

1997

1996

1995

$ 1,295,697

$ 851,483

$ 649,157

972,539

885,198

820,196

Year Ended December 31,
Cas h fl ows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Earnings of companies carried at equity, less dividends
received (1997 $2,4 7 4 ; 1996 $1,911; 1995 $1,000)
Provis ion for losses on accounts receivable
Other adjustments
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivab les
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in deferred taxes
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabiliti es
Increase (decrease) in estim ated li abi lity
for taxes on income
Other - net

(2,021)
24,007
(2,778)

5,212
27,036
(4,613)

(3,791)
20,306
(3,562)

(642,772)
(184,388)
46,529

(319,448)
(144,774)
(26,226)

(136,312)
(99,334)

132,452

161,463

(9,243)

37,150
31,578

39,851
(73,044)

(3,684)
(39,389)

1,707,993

1,402,138

Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchases of fixed assets
Sa les/retirements of fixed assets
Payment for purchase of busine sses
Net proceeds on sa le of dri lling rigs
(Increase) decrease in investments
Decrease in other assets

(1,495,980)
97,004
(13,730)
174,000
(846,194)
24,852

(1 ,157,957)
98,584
(115,262)

Net cash used in investing activities

(2,060,048)

(1,392,499)

(941,055)

(370,771)
50,055
95,495

(366,791)
38,807
141,299

815,579
(309,685)
50,831
- - - -331,504

195,009
(165,742)
212,523

(327,189)
36,159
37,518
(40,552)
486,518
(287,455)
(143,444)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan
Proceeds from exe rcise of stock options
Purch ase of shares for Treasury
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Paym ent s of princ ipal on long-term debt
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash , beginning of year

$

Cash, end of year

(218,914)
1,050

1,194,344
(938,847)
26,936
(200,805)
129,165
42,496

55,105

(238,445)

(20,551)
137,259

64,744
72,515

14,844
57,671

116,708

$ 137,259

$ 72,515

See N otes to Consolidated Financial Sta tements
Schlumberger Limited IS chium berger N. V, Incorporated in the Netherlands Antilles) and Subsidiary Companies
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Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
(Dollar amou11fs in tltousatids)
COMMON STOCK
ISSUED
SHARES '

Ba lance,
January 1, 1995
614,802,904
Translation
adjustment
Sales to optionees
less shares
exchanged
Purchases for
Treasury
Employee stock
1,449,588
purchase plan
Net income
Dividends declared
($0.7125 per share' )
Balance,
December 31, 1995
Translation
adjustment
Sa les to optionees
less shares
exchanged
Employee stock
purchase plan
Net income
Dividends declared
($0.75 per share' )
Balance,
December 31, 1996
Translation
adjustment
Sales to optionees
less shares
exchanged
Employee stock
purchase plan
Net income
IVS acqu isition
Tax benefit on
stock options
Dividends declared
($0.75 per share' )
Balance,
December 31, 1997
1

616,252,492

IN TREASURY
AMOUNT

SHARES'

$695,946 130,338,980

AMOUNT

$2,406,321

TRANSLATION
ADJUSTMENT

INCOME
RETAINED FOR
USE IN
THE BUSINESS

$(57,104) $6,350,433
44,298

5,223

(1,742,660)

(32,296)

1,380,000

40,552

36,159
649,157
(345,518)
737,328 129,976,320

2,414,577

(12,806)

6,654,072

(1 ,415)
(5,314,696)

42,668
1,483,494

(98,631)

38,807
851,483
(367,811)

617,735,986

818,803 124,661,624

2,315,946

(14,221)

7,137,744

(33,917)
29,314
1,399,623

(3,323,223)

(61,743)

(238,812)

(4,438)

50,055
1,295,697
16,324
16,600
(371,710)

619,135,609

$931,096 121,099,589

$2,249,765

$ (48,138) $8,061,731

Restated for the 2jor-1 stock split on june 2, 1997.

See No tes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Schlumberger Limited (Schl111nberger N. V, In corporated in the Netherlands Antilles) and Subsidiary Companies
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
translated at the weighted-average exchange
rates for the period. All realized and unrealized
transaction gains and losses are included in
incom e in the period in which they occur. The
Company policy is to hedge against unrealized
gains and losses on a monthly basis. Included
in the 1997 results were transaction losses of $2
million, compared with a gain of $10 million
in 1996 and a loss of $2 m illion in 1995.
Currency exchange contrac ts are entered
into as a hedge against the effect of future settlement of assets and liabilities denomina ted in
other than the functional currency of the individual businesses. Gains or losses on the contracts are recognize d when th e currency
exch ange rates fluctu ate, and the resulting
charge or credit offsets the unrealized currency
gains or losses on those assets and liabilities. At
December 31, 1997, contracts and options were
outstanding to purchase the US dollar equivalent of $402 million in various foreign currencies. These contracts mature on various dates
in 1998, 1999 and 2000.

Summary of Accounting Policies
The Consolidated Financial Sta tem ents of
Schlumberger Limited and its subsidiaries
have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements include
the accoun ts of majority-owned subsidiaries.
Significant 20% - 50% owned companies are
carried on the equity method and classified in
Other Asse ts. The Company's pro rata share of
after-tax earnings is included in Interest and
o ther income. Equity in undistributed earnings
of all 50% owned companies at December 31,
1997, was not m aterial.
USE OF ESTIMATES

The prepara tion of financia l statemen ts in conformity with generally accepted acco unting
principles requires m anagement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of asse ts and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financia l statements and the reported
amo unts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. While actual results could
differ from these es timates, m anagement
believes that the estimates are reasonable.

INVESTMENTS

Both short-term and long-term investments
held to maturity are stated a t cost plus accrued
interes t, which approximates m arket, and
comprise primarily Eurodollar time deposits,
certificates of deposit and commercial paper,
Euronotes and Eurobonds, substantially all
denominated in US dollars. Substantially all the
investments designated as held to maturity that
were purchased and sold during the year had
original maturities of less than three months.
Short-term investments that are designated as
trading are stated at market. The unrealized gain
on such securities at December 31, 1997, was
not significant.
For purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Company does not

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Generally, revenue is recognized after services
are rend ered and products are shipped .
TRANSLATION OF NON-US CURRENCIES

All assets and liabilities recorded in functional
currencies other than US dollars are translated
at current exchange rates. The resulting adjustm ents are charged or credited directly to the
Stockholders' Equity section of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Revenue and exp enses are
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consider short-term investments to be cash
equivalents as they generally have original
maturities in excess of three months. Shortterm investments at December 31, 1997 and
1996, were $1.6 billion and $1.2 billion,
respectively.

rules and regulations of the many taxing
authorities where the income is earned. The
income tax rates imposed by these taxing
authorities vary substantially. Taxable income
may differ from pretax income for financial
accounting purposes. To the extent that differences are due to revenue or expense items
reported in one period for tax purposes and in
another period for financial accotmting purposes, an appropriate provision for deferred
income taxes is made.
Approximately $3.4 billion of consolidated
income retained for use in the business at
December 31, 1997, represented undistributed
earnings of consolidated subsidiaries and the
Company's pro rata share of 20% -50% owned
companies. No provision is made for deferred
income taxes on those earnings considered to
be indefinitely reinvested or earnings that
would not be taxed when remitted.
Tax credits and other allowances are credited
to current income tax expense on the flowthrough method of accounting.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated principally at average or
standard cost, which approximates average
cost, or at market, if lower. Inventory consists
primarily of materials and supplies.
EXCESS OF INVESTMENT
OVER NET ASSETS OF COMPANIES PURCHASED

Cost in excess of n et assets of purchased
companies is amortized on a straight-line
basis over periods ranging from 5 to 40 years.
Accumulated amortization was $343 million
and $287 million at December 31, 1997 and
1996, respectively.
FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Fixed asse ts are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, which is provided for by charges
to income over the estimated useful lives of the
asse ts by the straight-line method. Fixed assets
include the manufacturing cos t (average cost)
of oilfield technical equipment manufactured
by subsidiaries of the Company. Expenditures
for renewals, replacements and betterments
are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to opera ting expen ses as incurred.
Upon sale or other disposition, the applicable
amounts of asset cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the
net amount, less proceeds from disposal, is
charged or credited to income.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

As required by SFAS 128, the Company must
report both basic and diluted earnings per
share. Basic earnings p er share is computed by
dividing net income by the average number of
common shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing net income by the average number of
common shares outstanding assuming dilution, the calculation of which assumes that all
stock options and warrants are exercised at the
beginning of the period and the proceeds used,
by the Company, to purchase shares at the
average market price for the period. The following is a reconciliation from basic earnings
per share to diluted earnings per share for each
of the last three years:

TAXES ON INCOME

The Company and its subsidiaries compute
taxes on income in accordance with the tax
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to less than 5% of the worldwide workforce
primarily in Europe and pertain to bo th manufacturing and operating personnel in about 30
locations. Most of the other facilities' closure costs
relate to the write-down of buildings, equipment and other assets to net realizable value.
In addition, the Comp any r eco rd ed a
charge of $58 million after tax, including a loss
on the divestiture of th e rema ining defenserelated activity, certain asset impairments and
other charges. The amow1t is classified in Cost
of goods sold and services ($47 million) and
Taxes on income ($11 million).
As of December 31, 1997, $65 million of
the severance and termination had been spent.
The remainder should be spent within the next
18 months.

(S tnterl i11 tllousn11ds except per sllnre amoun ts)
NET
INCOME

AVERAGE
SHARES
OUTSTANDING

EARNINGS
PER
SHARE

$ 1,295,697

495,215

$2.62

$ 1,295,697

10,992
8,138
514,345

$2.52

$ 851,483

490,041

$ 1.74

$ 851,483

6,142
4,315
500,498

$ 1.70

$ 649,157

484,748

$1.33

$ 649,157

2,315
801
487,864

1997

Bas ic
Effect of
dilution:
Option s
War rants
Di luted
1996

Basic
Effect of
di lution:
Options
Warrants
Diluted
1995

Basic
Effect of
dilution:
Options
Warrants
Diluted

Acquisitions
During 1997, subsidiaries of the Company
acquired Interac tive Video Systems, Inc., a
metrology solutions provider for the front-end
semiconductor fabrication equipment market,
and S.A. Holditch and Associates, Inc., a petroleum and geoscience consulting services company. These acquisitions were accounted for as
purchases. Costs in excess of net assets acquired
were $38 million w hich are being amortized on
a straight-line basis over periods of 5 and 15
years, respectively.
During 1996, subsidiaries of the Company
acquired Solaic, SA (on December 31, 1996), a
magnetic and smart card manufacturer; an
80% interest in Printer, a magnetic stripe card
manufacturer; Oilphase Sampling Services Ltd.,
a reservoir fluid samplin g company; The
Production Analyst• and OilField Manager•
software products from OGC! Software, Inc.;
Germann, a turnkey gasoline sta tion provider;
Gueant, a gas dispenser service company; and
a 33% equity interest in DAP Technologies

$ 1.32

RESEARCH & ENGINEERING

All research and engineering expend itures are
expensed as in curred, including costs relating
to patents or rights that m ay result from such
ex penditures.

Unusual Items
In 1996, the Company armounced a charge of
$300 million after tax in the third quarter related
primarily to the Electricity & Gas and Geco-Prakla
Land and Transition Zone businesses. The aftertax charge of $300 million included pre-tax
charges of $112 million for severance and termination costs, other facilities' closure costs of $39
million, goodwi ll write-offs of $122 milli on, and
other asset impairments/ charges of $60 million.
The severance and termination costs relate
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Limited, a developer and manufacturer of
rugged handheld computer products. The purch ase prices were $75 million, $9 million, $7
million, $8 million, $8 million, $7 million and
$4 million, respectively. These acquisitions were
accounted for as purchases. Costs in excess of
net assets acquired were $91 million which are
being amortized on a straight-line basis over
periods between 7 and 25 years.

Estimated u seful lives of Buildings &
improvements range from 5 to 50 years
and of Machinery and equipment from 2
to 25 years.

Long-Term Debt
A summary of long-term debt by currency
follows:
(S tnted in millions)

December 31,

Investments

dollar
French franc
UK pound
German mark
Japanese yen
Italian lira
Canadian dollar
Other
US

The Consolidated Balance Sheet reflects the
Company's investment portfolio separated
between current and long-term, based on maturity. Except for $117 million of investments
w hich are considered trading at December 31,
1997 (1996- $111 million), it is the Company's
intent to hold the investments until maturity.
Long-term investments mature in 1999- $97
million, in 2000- $205 million and $441 million
thereafter.
At December 31, 1997, there were interest
rate swap arrangements outstanding having a
total principal amount of $80 million. These
arrangements mature at various dates in 1998,
and interest rates are adjusted quarterly. Interest
rate swap arrangements had no material effect
on con solidated interest income.

A summary of fixed assets follows:
(S tated in millions)

1997

Land
Buildings &
improvements
Machinery and
equipment

$

Total cost
Less accum ulated
depreciation

75

1996
$

71

1,009

1,040

9,126

8,467

10,210

9,578

6,441

6,219

$3,769

$3,359

1996

$ 323
186
122
118
111
93
68
48

$ 195

$1,069

$ 637

137
185
101
7
12

Long-term debt is at variable rates; substantially all of the debt is at rates up to 8%.
Such rates are reset every six months or sooner.
Accordingly, the carrying value of long-term
debt at December 31, 1997, approximates the
aggregate fair value.
Long-term debt at December 31, 1997, is
due as follows: $372 million in 1999, $266 million in 2000, $197 million in 2001, $146 million
in 2002 and $88 million thereafter.
At December 31, 1997, there were no interest rate swap arrangements outstanding
related to debt. At times, interest rate swap
arrangements are entered into to adjust nonUS dollar denominated d ebt and interest rates
into US dollars. Interest rate swap arrangements had no impact in 1997 and 1996. The
exposure, in the event of nonperformance by
the other parties to the arrangements, would
not be significant.

Fixed Assets

December 31,

1997
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accounting for its plans. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its stock
option plans and its stock purchase plan. Had
compensation cost for the Company's stockbased plans been determined based on the fair
value at the grant dates for awards under those
plans, consistent with the method of SFAS 123,
the Company's net income and earnings per
share would have been the pro forma amounts
indicated below:

Lines of Credit
At December 31, 1997, the Company's principal
US subsidiary had an available unused
Revolving Credit Agreement with a group of
banks. The Agreement provided that the subsidiary may borrow up to $500 million until
December 1998 at money market-based rates.
In addition, at December 31, 1997, the Company
and its subsidiaries had available unused lines
of credit of approximately $830 million.

(Stated in millions except per share nmo1mts)

Capital Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000,000
shares of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per
share, of which 498,036,020 and 493,074,362
(restated for the 2-for-1 stock split on June 2,
1997) shares were outstanding on December 31,
1997 and 1996, respectively. The Company is
also authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of
cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $0.01
per share, which may be issued in series with
terms and conditions determined by the Board
of Directors. No shares of Preferred Stock have
been issued. Holders of Common Stock and
Preferred Stock are entitled to one vote for
each share of stock held.
In January 1993, Schlumberger acquired
the remaining 50% interest in the Dowell
Schlumberger group of companies. The purchase
price included a warrant, expiring in 7.5 years
and valued at $100 million, to purchase (restated
for the 2-for-1 stock split on June 2, 1997) 15
million shares of Schlumberger Limited Common
Stock at an exercise price of $29.975 per share.
The warrant is fully vested and nontransferable.

Net income
As reported
Pro forma
Basic earn ings
per share'
As reported
Pro forma
Diluted earn ings
per share'
As reported
Pro forma

1997

1996

1995

$1,296
$1,233

$ 851
$ 809

$ 649
$ 641

$ 2.62
$ 2.49

$1.74
$1.65

$1.33
$1.32

$ 2.52
$ 2.40

$1.70
$1.62

$1.32
$1.31

Restatedfor the 2-for-1 stock split on June 2, 1997.

1

As required by SFAS 123, the above pro
forma data reflect the effect of stock option
grants and the employee stock purchase plan
during 1997, 1996 and 1995.
STOCK OPTION PLANS

During 1997, 1996, 1995 and in prior years,
officers and key employees were granted stock
options under the Company's stock option
plans. The exercise price of each option equals
the market price of the Company's stock on the
date of grant; an option's maximum term is
ten years, and options generally vest in 20%
increments over five years.
As required by SFAS 123, the fair value of
each grant is estimated on the date of grant
using the multiple option Black-Scholes option-

Stock Compensation Plans
As of December 31, 1997, the Company has two
types of stock-based compensation plans, which
are described below. The Company applies
APB Opinion 25 and related Interpretations in
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pricing model with the following weightedaverage assumptions used for 1997, 1996 and
1995: dividend of $0.75; expected volatility of
21% for 1997 grants and 20% for 1996 and 1995
grants; risk-free interest rates for the 1997
grant to officers of 6.19% and 5.80% - 6.77%
for the 1997 grants to all other employees;
risk-free interes t ra tes for 1996 grants of
5.38% - 6.36% for officers and 5.09% - 6.01% for
all other employees; risk-free interest rates for

1995 grants of 5.85% - 7.88% for officers and
5.70% - 7.66% for all other employees; and
expected option lives of 7.27 years for officers
and 5.09 years for other employees for 1997
grants and 8.4 years for officers and 5.39 years
for other employees for 1996 and 1995 grants.
A summary of the status of the Company's
stock option plans as of December 31, 1997,
1996 and 1995, and changes during the years
ending on those dates is presented below:

1997'

FIXED OPTIONS

SHARES

Outstanding at
beginning of year

1996'
WEIGHTED·
AVERAGE
EXERCISE
PRICE

SHARES

- --

1995'
WEIGHTEDAVERAGE
EXERCISE
PRICE

-

SHARES

--

WEIGHTED·
AVERAGE
EXERCISE
PRICE

- -- -

Forfeited

24,396,796
6,157,271
(3,405,622)
(529,140)

$32.50
$84.50
$28.75
$36.52

22,140,960
8,262,000
(5,516,484)
(489,680)

$29.00
$39.50
$27.00
$32.00

23,121,698
1,507,400
(1,795,838)
(692,300)

$28.00
$31.00
$22.00
$30.50

Outstand ing at
end of year

26,619,305

$45.21

24,396,796

$32.50

22,140,960

$ 29.00

Options exercisab le
at year-end

10,786,864

9,927,816

12,518,540

$26.11

$10.53

$8.70

Granted
Exercised

We ighted-average
fair va lue of options
granted during the year
1

Restated for the 2jor-1 stock split on June 2, 1997.

The following table summarizes information concerning currently outstanding and

exercisable options by three ranges of exercise
prices at December 31, 1997:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING
RANGE OF
EXERCI SE PRICES

$ 4.2100-$31.4690
$31.5320 - $42.2820
$46.8130 - $90.5000
$ 4.2100- $90.5000

OPTIONS EX ERCISABLE

NUMBER
OUTSTANDING
AS OF 12/31/97

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE
REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL LIFE

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICE

NUMBER
EXERCISABLE
AS OF 12/ 31/97

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICE

8,858,775
11,120,229
6,640,301
26,619,305

5.71
6.87
9.63
7.17

$28.5219
$36.6741
$81.5801
$45.2138

6,238,135
4,428,729
120,000
10,786,864

$28.9303
$34.2084
$46.8130
$31.2719
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related to its US subsidiary's tax loss carryforward and all temporary differences. The
resulting reduction in income tax expense was
not significant.
The Company has net deductible temporary
differences of $940 million at December 31,
1997. Significant temporary differences pertain to postretirement medical benefits, fixed
assets, employee benefits and inventory.
The Company and its subsidiaries operate
in over 100 taxing jurisdictions where statutory
tax rates generally vary from 0% - 50%.
The effective tax ra tes in 1997, 1996 (before
the unusual items) and 1995, were 22%, 20%
and 16%, respectively. The variations from the
US statutory federal tax rate (35%) and the
Company's effective tax rates were due to
several factors, including the effect of the US
operating loss carryforward and a substantial
proportion of operations in countries where
taxation on income is lower than in the US.
The Company's 1997 incom e tax expense
includes a deferred tax benefit of $17 million.
In 1996 and 1995, due to the Company's US
consolidated group net opera ting loss carryforward, the deferred tax provision excluding
the effect of the 1996 unusual items, was less
than $5 million. The remaining component of
income tax expense was the current provision
in each year.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Under th e Schlumberger Discounted Stock
Purchase Plan, the Company is authorized to
issue up to 10,012,245 shares of Common
Stock to its employees. On January 21, 1998,
the Board, subject to stockholder approval,
am ended the Plan to increase the aggregate
number of sh ares available for purch ase to
22,012,245 . Und er the terms of the Plan,
employees can ch oose each year to h ave
up to 10% of their annual earnings withheld
to purchase the Company's Common Stock.
The purchase price of the stock is 85% of
the lower of its beginning or end of the plan
year m arke t price. Under the Plan, the
Company sold 1,399,623, 1,483,494 and
1,449,588 shares to employees in 1997, 1996
and 1995, respectively. Compensation cost has
been computed for the fair value of the
empl oyees' purchase rights, which was
estimated using the Black-Scholes model with
the following assumptions for 1997, 1996
and 1995: dividend of $0.75; exp ected life of
one year; expected volatility of 28% for 1997
and 20% for 1996 and 1995; and risk-free
interes t rates of 5.64% for 1997, 5.71% for
1996 and 5.61% for 1995. The weightedaverage fair value of those purchase rights
granted in 1997, 1996 and 1995, was $17.845,
$9.73 and $7.21, respectively.

Income Tax Expense

Leases and Lease Commitments

In the third qu arter of 1996, with increasing
profitability and strong outlook in the US, the
Company recognized 50% of the US incom e
tax benefit related to its US subsidiary's tax
loss carryforward and all temporary differences. This resulted in a credit of $360 million.
In the second quarter of 1997, the Company
released the remaining valuation allowance

Total rental expen se was $285 million in
1997, $232 million in 1996 and $206 million in
1995. Future minimum rental commitments
under noncancelable leases for years ending
December 31 are: 1998$157 million; 1999 $142
million; 2000 $119 million; 2001 $97 million;
and 2002 $82 million. For the ensuing three
five-year periods, these commitments decrease
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Segment Information

from $149 million to $4 million. The minimum
rentals over the rem aining term s of the leases
aggregate to $26 million .
Included in the rental expenses and future
minimum rental commitments above are the
Sedco Forex semisubmersibles Drillstar and
Sedco Explorer. In September 1997, these rigs
we re sold t o a n ew ly form ed ve ntu re in
w hich the Company has a 25% interest. The
rigs will be operated by Sed co Forex under
bareboat charters.

The Company's busin ess com prises three
segments: Oilfield Services, Measurement &
Systems and Omnes. Services and products are
d escribed in m ore detail on p ages 46-47 in
this report.
Oilfield Serv ices and Measuremen t &
Systems are reportable segments.
Financial inform ation for the years ended
December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, by industry
segment and by geographic area, is as follows:

Contingencies
The Company and its subsidiaries comply
with government laws and regulations and
responsible management practices for the protection of the environment. The Consolidated
Balance Sheet includes accruals for the estima ted future costs associated with certain
environmental remediation activities related to
the past use or disposal of hazardous materials.
Substantially all such costs relate to divested
operations and to facilities or locations that are
no longer in operation . Due to a number of
uncer tainties, including uncertainty of timing,
the scop e of remediation, future technology,
regu la tory ch an ges and other fac tors, it is
possible that the ultimate rem ediation costs
may exceed the am ounts estimated . H owever,
in the opinion of m anagement, such additional
cos ts are not expected to be material relative to
con solidated liquidity, financial p osition or
future results of opera tion s.
In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries are party to various other legal proceedings. Althoug h the ultimate disposition of
these proceedings is not presently determinable,
in the opinion of the Company any liability
that might ensue would no t be m aterial in relation to the Consolidated Financial Statem ents.
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(Stated in niillions)
ADJUST.
& ELIM.

CONSOLIDATED

$10,648

$7,663
$ 1,557

$2,985
$ 1 _ _(_1)
$2,986
$ (1)
$(58)
$ 149

Fi xed asset add ition s

$ 788
$1,353

$ 114
$ 140

$ 3
$ 3

At December 31
Identifi able assets

$7,101

$2,481

$(99)

$ 9,483
2,614
$ 12,097

$6,129

$2,827
$ 7 _____B
$2,834
$ (7)
$ 124 ~

$ 8,956

OILFIELD
SERVICES

MEASUREMENT
& SYSTEMS

INDUSTRY SEGMENT 1997

Operating revenue
Customers
Inter-segment tran sfe rs

$7,663
-

Operating income
Interest expense
· Interest and other incom e
Income before taxes
Deprec iation expe nse

Corporate assets
Tota l assets

$ 10,648
$ 1,648
(87)
107
$ 1,668
$ 905
$ 1,496

INDUSTRY SEGMENT 1996

Operating revenue
Customers
Inter-segment transfers

-

$6,129
$ 986

Operating in come

$ 8,956
$ 1,058
(72)

Inte rest expense
Inte rest and other income
Unu sual items

70
~)

Income before taxes

$ 676
$ 819
$ 1,158

Fi xed asset additions

$ 700
$ 1,018

$ 111
$ 131

$ 8
$ 9

At December 31
Identifiable assets

$5,961

$2,518

~

$ 8,438
1,887
$10,325

$4,867
1
$ 4,868
$ 627

$2,755
$ 4 _ _(_5)
$2,759
$ (5)
$ 151 ~

$ 7,622

Depreciation expense
Fixed asset add itions

$ 650
$ 800

$ 104
$ 122

$ 6
$ 17

At December 31
Identifi ab le assets

$5,192

$2,213

$(29)

Depreciation expense

Co rporat e assets
Total assets
INDUSTRY SEGMENT 199S

Operating reve nue
Customers
Inter-segment transfers
Operating income
Interest expense
Inte rest and other income less other charges- $1
Inco me before taxes

Corporate assets
Total assets
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$ 7,622
$ 761
(82)
91
$ 770
$ 760
$ 939
$ 7,376
1,534
$ 8,910

During the years ended December 31, 1997,
1996 and 1995, neither sales to any government
nor sales to any single custom er exceeded 10%
of consolida ted opera ting revenue.
Corporate assets largely comprise shortterm and long-term investments.

Tra n sfers b etw een segm ents and geogr ap hi c areas are fo r th e m os t p ar t m a d e
a t reg ul ar prices availab le to unaffilia ted
customers.
Certain Oilfield Ser vices segm ent fi xed
asse ts are m anufactured w ithin that segm ent.
WE STERN HEMISPHERE

us

OTHER

EASTERN HEMISPHERE
EUROPE

OTH ER

(S tated i11 millio11s)
ADJ UST.
& ELIM.

CON SOL·
IDATED

GEOGRAPHIC AREA 1997

Ope rating reve nu e
Customers
Inter-area transfe rs
Ope rating income

$ 2,696
580
$3,276
$ 374

$ 1,508
14
$ 1,522
$ 266

$3,093
338
$ 3,431
$ 349

$3,351
46
$3,397
$ 816

(978)
$ (978)
$ (157)

$2,713

$ 1,329

$ 2,705

$ 2,746

$ (10)

$ 9,483
2,614
$ 12,097

$ 2,103
443
$2,546
$ 195

$ 1,150
7
$ 1,157
$ 166

$3,065
169
$3,234
$ 243

$ 2,638
35
$ 2,673
$ 546

$

(654)
$ (654)
$ (92)

$ 8,956

$ 2,249

$ 885

$3,300

$ 2,069

$ (65)

$ 8,438
1,887
$ 10,325

$ 1,826
358
$ 2,184
$ 130

$ 905
17
$ 922
$ 135

$ 2,779
149
$ 2,928
$ 170

$ 2,112
30
$ 2,142
$ 367

(554)
$ (554)
$ (41)

$ 7,622

$

-

Interest expense
Interest and other in come
Income before taxes
At Dece mber 31
Identif iab le assets
Corporate asset s
Tota l assets

$ 10,648
$ 10,648
$ 1,648
(87)
107
$ 1,668

GEOGRAPHIC AREA 1996

Ope rating reve nue
Customers
Inter-area transfers
Ope rat ing income

-

Interest expense
Interest and other income
Unusual items
Income before taxes
At December 31
Identif iab le assets
Corporate asset s
Tot al assets

-

$ 8,956
$ 1,058
(72)
70
(380)
$ 676

GEOGRAPHIC AREA 1995

Ope rat ing revenue
Custome rs
Inter-a rea transfers
Operat ing income

$

Interest expense
Interest and other inco me
less other charges - $1

$

Income before t axes
At December 3 1
Ident ifiable assets

-

$ 7,622
$ 761
(82)

$ 1,748

$ 720

Corporate assets
Total asset s

37

$ 2,894

$ 2,025

$ (11)

91
770

$ 7,376
1,534
$ 8,910

Pen sion and Other Benefit Plans

its subsidiaries amended their pension plan s
to improve re tire m e nt ben efit s fo r re tire d
employees. The funded sta tus a t December 31,
1997, reflects the amendmen t.
The funded status of the plans at December 31,
1997 and 1996, w as as follows:

US PENSION PLANS

The Company and its US subsidiary sponsor
several defined benefit pension plans that cover
substantially all employees. The benefits are
based on years of service and compensation on a
career-average p ay basis. These plans are substantially fully funded with a trustee in respect
to past and cu rrent service. Charges to expense
are based upon costs computed by independent
actuaries. The funding p olicy is to contribute
annually am ounts tha t are allowable for federal
income tax purposes. These contributions are
intended to p rovid e for benefits ea rned to d ate
and those exp ected to be earned in the future.
The assumed discount ra te, compensation
increases and return on plan assets used to
d etermine pension expen se in 1997 were 8%,
4.5% and 8.5%, respectively. The assumed discount rate in 1996 and 1995 was 7.5%.
Ne t pension cost in the US for 1997, 1996
an d 1995, included the following components:

(Sta ted i11 millions)

1997 1996
Actuari a l prese nt va lue
of obligation s :
Vested benefit obligation
$750 $639
=A:=c=c=u=m=u=cla=ct=e=cd=:b=e=n=e~fi;=
t = = = = ==== ====
obligation
$ 754 $641

---------- ----

===::'==:==~==:======

=
Pe=n=s=io=n=l=ia=b=ili=
t y============ _$_(_65_) _$_(_5_7)
Assumed discoun t ra te and ra te of compensa tion increases used to de termine the
p rojected benefit obliga tions w ere 7.5% and
4.5%, resp ectively, in 1997, and 8% and 4.5%,
respectively, in 1996; the expected long-term
ra te of re turn on p lan assets was 8.5% for
bo th years. Plan assets a t December 31, 1997,
consisted of comm on stocks ($524 m illion),
cash or cash equivalents ($58 million ), fixed
income investments ($253 million) and o ther
investments ($78 million). Less than 1% of the
p la n asse ts a t December 31, 1997, rep resented
Schlumberger Limited Common Stock.

(S tated in millio11S)

Se rvice cost benefits earned
during the pe riod
Inte rest cost on projected
be nefit obiigation
Expected return on
pl an assets (actu al
return : 19 97 $165;
1996 $94; 19 9 5 $137)

Amortization of
trans ition asset
Amorti zati on of prior
service cost;othe r
Net pe ns ion cost

1997

1996

1995

$29

$27

$26

55

50

46

(57)

(52)

(47)

(2)

(2)

(2)

3
$28

4
$27

4
$ 27

-- --

-- --

Proj ected benefit obligation
$824 $ 700
Pl an assets at market va lue
913
771
-------------- - - - Excess of assets ove r projected
benefit obi igation
71
89
Unrecognized net gain
(204) (155)
Unrecognized prior service cost
55
34
Unrecognized net asset
(5)
(7)
at trans ition date

NON-US PENSION PLANS

Outside of the US, subsid iaries of the Compan y
sponsor several d efined benefit and defined
contribution plans tha t cover subs tantially all
employees who are not covered by statutory plans.
For defined benefit plans, charges to expense are
based u pon costs computed by ind ependent
actuaries. These plans are substantially fully

Effective January 1, 1996, the Company and
its subsid iaries amended their pen sion plans
to im p rove retirement benefits for cu rrent
employees. The fu nded sta tus at December 31,
1995, reflects the amendment.
Effective Jan uary 1, 1998, the Compan y and
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The assumed discount ra te and ra te of
comp ensa tion increases used to determine the
p rojected benefit obliga tion were 7.5% and 5%,
respectively, in 1997 and 8% and 5%, respectively, in 1996; the exp ected long-term ra te of
return on plan assets was 8.5% in 1997 and
1996. Plan assets consisted of common stocks
($268 million), cash or cash equivalents ($10
million) and fixed incom e inves tments ($61
million). None of the plan assets represented
Schlumberger Limited Common Stock.
For defined contribution plans, funding and
cost are generally based upon a predetermined
percentage of employee compensation. Charges
to expense in 1997, 1996 and 1995, were $23
million, $15 million and $14 million, respectively.

funded with trustees in respect to past and current
service. For all defined benefit plans, p ension
expense was $15 million, $16 million and $13
million in 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The
only significant defined benefit plan is in the UK.
The assumed discount rate, compensation
increases and return on p lan assets used to
determine pension exp en se in 1997 were 8%,
5% and 8.5%, resp ectively. The assumed discount rate in 1996 and 1995 was 7.5%.
Net p ension cost in the UK plan for 1997,
1996 and 1995 (translated into US dollars at
the average exchange rate for the p eriods),
included the following components:
(S tated in millions)

-------------------

Se rvice cost - benefits
earned during the period
Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation
Expected return on
pla n assets (actual
return: 199 7 $26;

1997

1996

1995

$14

$12

$ 10

14

9

9

(24)

(18)

(16)

(4)
$ -

(3)
$ -

---- ---- ----

OTHER DEFERRED BENEFITS

1996 $36 ; 19 95 $43 )

Amo rtization of trans ition
asset and other
Net pens ion cost

----

= ========== =

=

In addition to providing pension benefits, the
Compan y and its sub sidiaries h ave o ther
deferred benefi t programs. Expense for these
programs was $123 million, $93 million and $80
million in 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

(2)

$1
=

HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

The funded status of the plan (tran slated
into US dollars at year-end exch ange ra tes)
was as follows:
(S lated in millions)
Actuari al prese nt value
of obligation s:
Vested benefit ob ligation
Accumu lated benefit
obligation
Projected benefit ob ligation
Plan assets at market value
Excess of assets over
projected benefit obligation
Unrecognized net gain
Un recognized prior servi ce cost
Unrecognized net asset
at trans ition date
Pension asset

1997

1996

$200

$ 132

$200

$132

$227
339

$ 150
276

112
(92)
3

126
(111)
4

(4)

(4)
$ 15

$ 19

The Company and its US subsidiary provide
health care benefits for certain active employees.
The cost of providing these benefits is recognized as expense when incurred and aggrega ted
$33 million , $38 million and $37 million in 1997,
1996 and 1995, resp ectively. Outside the US,
such benefits are m os tly p rovided through
government-sponsored programs.
POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company and its US subsidiary provide
certain health care benefits to former employees
who have retired under the US pension plans.
The principal actuarial assumptions used
to measure costs were a discount ra te of 8% in
1997 and 7.5% in 1996 an d 1995. The overall
medical cost trend ra te assumption beginning
39
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December 31, 1996, was 9% graded to 5% over
the nex t six years and 5% thereafter. Previously
the overall assumption had been 10% graded
to 6% over the nex t six years and 6% thereafter.
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost in
the US for 1997, 1996 and 1995, included the
following components:

Operating revenue and related cost of goods
sold and services comprised the following:
(Stated i11 millions)

Year ended
December 31,

Service cost benefits earned
during the period
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement
ben efit obligation
Amortization of
unrecognized net
gain and other

1996

1995

$ 9

$ 13

$ 12

21

26

25

Sal es
Services

Services

$39

$37

Postretirement benefit
li ab ility at December 31

$ 1,822 $ 1,704 $1,645
6,015
5,131
4,159
------ ----- - - - - $ 7,837 $6,835 $5,804

Cash paid for interest and income taxes was
as follows:
(Stated i11 mil/io11s)

Year ended
December 31,

(Stated in millions)

Unrecognized net gain
Unrecognized prior service

$ 2,664 $2,428 $2,372
7,984
6,528
5,250
- - - - - - ----- ----$10,648 $ 8,956 $7,622

= = = = = ==== === ===

(5)

The fund ed status at December 31, 1997 and
1996, was as follows:

Accumulated postretirement
benefit ob ligation:
Retirees
Fully eligible
Actives

1995

Direct operating costs
Goods so ld

$25

1996

Operating reve nue

(Stat ed ill miiJiOIIS)

1997

1997

1997

1996

$149
50
106
305
87
5

$ 143
44
99
286
92
5

Interest
Income taxes

$397

1997

1996

1995

$ 87
$271

$ 73
$ 179

$ 81
$132

Accounts paya ble and accrued liabilities are
summ arized as follows:
(Stated in milliotiS)

December 31 ,
Payroll , vacation and
employee benefits

$383

Trade
Taxes, other than incom e

The assumed discount rate used to determine the accumu lated postretirement benefit
obliga tion was 7.5% for 1997 and 8% for 1996.
If the assumed medical cost trend rate was
increased by one percentage point, health care
cost in 1997 would have been $30 million,
and the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation would have been $355 million at
December 31, 1997.

Other

1997

1996

$ 541 $ 488
870
712
175
182
711
818
----- - - $2,297 $ 2,200

The caption "Interest and other income"
includes interes t income, principally from
short-term and long-term investmen ts, of $99
million, $73 million and $89 million for 1997,
1996 and 1995, respectively.
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Report of Independent Accountants
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Schlumberger Limited
In our opinion, the accompan ying consolidated
balance sheet and the related con solidated
statem en ts of incom e, of stockholders' equity
and of cash fl ows p resent fairly, in all material
respects, the financial p osition of Schlumberger
Limited and its subsidiaries at December 31,
1997 and 1996, and the results of their op erations and their cash flows for each of the three
yea rs in the period ended December 31, 1997,
in conformity w ith generally accepted accounting p rinciples. These financial statements are
the resp onsibility of the Company's m an agement; our resp onsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statem ents based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance w ith generally accepted
auditing standards which require that we plan

and p erform th e audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the fin an cial statem ents are free of m aterial misstatem ent. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in th e finan cial sta tem ents, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant es timates made by m an agement, and evaluating
the overall fin ancial statement presentation .
We believe that our audits p rov ide a reasonable basis for the opinion exp ressed above.

~.,...:._ (#~
Price Waterh ouse LLP
New York, New York
January 21, 1998
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Quarterly Results
(UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes results for
each of the four quarters for the years ended
December 31, 1997 and 1996. Gross profit

equals operating revenue less cost of goods
sold and services.

(S tated in mi1Jio11s except per share amoun ts)
OPERATING
REVENUE

EARNINGS PER SHARE'

GROSS PROFIT

NET INCOME

BASIC

DILUTED

QUARTERS-1997
First
Second
Third
Fourth

$ 2,402
2,602
2,736
2,908

$ 619
673
735
784

$ 260
306
357
373

$ 0.53
0.62
0.72
0.75

$ 0.51
0.60
0.69
0.72

$10,648

$2,811

$1,296

$ 2.62

$ 2.52

$ 2,028
2,151
2,262
2,515

$ 478
519
510
614

$ 171
196
229
255

$ 0.35
0.40
0.47
0.52

$ 0.35
0.39
0.46
0.50

$ 8,956

$2,121

$ 851

$ 1.74

$ 1.70

QUARTERS- 1996
First
Second
Thi rd
Fourth

1

Restated for the 2-Jor-1 stock split on Jun e 2, 1997.
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Five-Year Summary

(Sta ted in millio11s except per share amounts)

1997

1996

1995

1994

1993

$ 7,663
2,986
$10,648
19%

$ 6,129
2,834
$ 8,956
18%

$ 4,868
2,759
$ 7,622
14%

$4,365
2,339
$6,697
-%

$4,338
2,370
$6,705

$ 1,557
149
(58)
$ 1,648
56%
87
373

986 $ 627
$ 495
124
151
121
(52) __112} ~
$ 593
$ 1,058 $ 761
39%
28%
(6%)
72
82
63
(1 76)
121
81

$ 1,296
52%
$ 1,296

$

851
31%

$

2.62
2.62

$
$

1.74

$

1.33

$ 1.10

2.52
2.52
0.75

$

1.70
1.70
0.75

$

1.32

$ 1.10

Year Ended December 31,
SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Operating revenue:
Oilfield Services
Measurement & Systems
Tota l operating revenue
% increase over prior year
Operating income:
Oi lfield Services
Measu rement & Systems
Elimination s
% increase (decrease) over prior yea r
Interest expense
Taxes on income'
Income, before cumulative effect
of a change in accounting principl e
% increase (decrease) over prior year
Postretirement benefits
Net income
Bas ic earnings per share 2 :
Before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle
Postretirement benefits
Basic earn ings per share
Diluted earnings per share 2 :
Before cumu lative effect of a
change in accounting princi ple
Postretirement benefits

$
$
$

Di luted earnings per share

$

Cash dividends decla red per share 2

$

$

$

649
21%

$ 536
(8%)

851

$

649

$ 536

1.74

$

1.33

$ 1.10

-

$ 468
184
(23)
$ 629
=
(10%)
69
81
--$ 583
(12%)

---

~
$ 335

=

$ 1.20

~

-

$
$

6%

$ 0.69

=

$ 1.18

~
$ 1.32
$0.7125

$ 1.10
$ 0.60

$ 0.67

=

$ 0.60

---

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL DATA

Income as% of operating revenue
Return on average stockholders' equ ity
Fixed asset additions
Deprec iation expense

12%
21%
$ 1,496
$ 905

Average number of shares outsta nding ' :
Bas ic
Ass uming dilution

495
514

10%
16%
$ 1,158 $
$ 819 $

9%
14%
939
760

8%
12%
$ 783
$ 722

490
500

485
488

487
489

$ 232
$ 1,568
$ 10,325
$ 637
$ 5,626
57,000

$ 188
$ 1,259
$ 8,910
$ 613
$ 4,964
51,000

$ 404
$ 1,037
$8,322
$ 394
$4,583
48,000

9%
14%
$ 691
$ 739

---

485
489

AT DECEMBER 31,

Liquidity
Wo rking capital
Tota l asset s
Long-term debt
Stockholders ' equity
Number of employee s

$ 580
$ 2,441
$12,097
---$ 1,069
$ 6,695
63,500

----

-$ -696
-$ -908
-$7,917
-$ 447
--$4,406
--48,000

'In1996, the normal recurring provision for income taxes, before recogn ition of the US tax loss carryforward benefit and
the tax effect of the un usual items, was $206 million.
' Restated for the 2-for-1 stock split on June 2, 1997.
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New Executive Vice Presidents
Chad Deaton
Executive Vice President
Oilfield Services Sol utions Croup

Chad Deaton was previously presid ent
of Dowell, based in Sugar Land, Texas.
Sin ce jo ining the Compan y in 1976, he
has he ld a number of management
positions w ith Wireline & Testing and
Dowell in North America and Europe.
He has a BS d egree in geo logy.

Andrew Gould
Executive Vice President
Oilfield Services Products Croup

Andrew Go uld was prev iously president
of Wireline & Testing, based in Paris. He
joined Schlumberger in 1975 and held
management positions with Sedco Forex,
Dowell and Wireline & Testing. He has a
bachelor's degree in economic history
and is a qua lifi ed Chartered Accountant.

Irwin Pfister
Executive Vice President
Test & Tmusnctions

Irwin Pfister was president of Autom a ted
Test Equipm ent s ince 1991, based in
San Jose, California. H e has 19 yea rs of
experience in management of elec tronic
equipment and systems businesses. He
has a BS d egree in ma them atics.
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The Schlumberger Organization
Oilfield Services provides virtually every type
of exploration and production service required
during the life of an oil and gas reservoir: seismic
data acquisition, processing and interpretation;
drilling rigs; drilling fl uids; directional drilling
and real-time drilling ana lysis; cementing and
stimulation of wells; wireline logging; well
evaluation, testing and production; integrated
data services and software; and project managem ent. As of February 1, 1998, the business
is organized in two groups, Solutions and
Products. The Solut ion s Group is organized
along geographic lines to d evelop, sell and
implement all oilfield services as welJ as customized and integra ted solutions to meet speci fi c
client needs. The Products Group is responsib le
for product development across the organization as well as trainin g and teclu1ical support
for each type of service in the fi eld to ens ure
the highest stand ards of service to clients.

Schlumberger comprises
three business segments:
Oilfield Services,
Measurement &Systems,
and Omnes.
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Measurement & Systems consists of Test &
Transactions and Resource Management Services
(RMS). Test & Transactions supplies technology,
products, services and systems solutions to the
semiconductor, banking, telecommunica tion,
retail petroleum, transportation and health care
industries. Test & Transac tions designs and
implements broad-based, customized solutions
to help clients improve time to market, optimize their business opportunities and improve
their productivity. It designs and manufactures
smart and magnetic stripe cards and associated
terminals that help optimize secured electronic
transactions, and automated tes ting and handling equipment for the sem icondu ctor,
telecommunications and automotive industries.
It also produces metrology and verifica tion
systems used for semiconductor fabrication,
and dispensers and business systems for the
retail petroleum market. Resource Management
Services is a global solutions provider to electricity, gas and water resource industry clients
worldwide, helping them to manage resources
an d enhance transactions . The RMS g ro up
delivers innova tive solutions by providing
measurement products, systems and services
for creating and sharing value with all clients.

Omnes provides information technology and
communications services to oil and gas companies and to companies with op erations in
rem ote regions. It offers solution s for w ideand local-area networks, including sa tellitebased networks, n e twork security, Intern et,
intranet and messaging.
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Schlumberger Common Stock is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange, trad ing symbol SLB,
and on the Paris, London, Amsterdam and Swiss
stock exchanges.
For quarterly earnings, dividend announcements
and other information requests, call Schlumberger
Shareholder Direct® at 1-800-99-SLB-99 from
the US and Canada. International callers dial
1-402-573-9796.
Schlumberger can be accessed on the
Internet at http:/ jwww.slb.com
STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

BankBoston, N.A.
cjo Boston EquiServe
Investor Relations
P.O. Box 8040
Boston, Massachusetts 02266-8040
1-800-733-5001 or 1-781-575-3400
FORM 10-K

The Company's 1997 annual report
on Form 10-K fi led with the Securities
and Exchange Commission is available
without charge. From the US and Canada,
call 1-800-99-S LB-99. International callers
dial 1-402-573-9796. Alternatively, write to
the Secretary, Schlumberger Limited,
277 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10172.
It can also be accessed on the Internet at
http:/;www.slb.com/ir
DUPLICATE MAILINGS

When a stockholder owns shares in more than
one account, or when stockholders live at the
same address, duplicate mailings may result.
If you receive duplicate reports, you can help
eliminate the added expense by requesting that
on ly one copy be sent. To eliminate duplicate
mailings, contact BankBoston , N.A., cjo Boston
EquiServe, Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar,
listed above.
Design by Milton Glaser, Inc.
Photographs on pages 6-8 are from the personal photo
albums of Schlumberger people, respectively, Gary
Yamamoto, Catherine Fiamma and Pascale Eecke lers.
Photograph on page 9 by Erich Hartmann/Magnum.
Portraits on cover by New Vision Communications.
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This report is printed on recycled paper .
• . -:-• The text pages contain 10% post-consumer
~
fiber consisting almost entirely of wastepaper
recycled from Schlumberger ATE facilities in San Jose
and Simi Valley, California.
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*Mark of Sch lumberger
t SAP and R/3 are registered trademarks of SAP AG
I MFG/PRO is a registered trademark of QAD
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